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TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' REPORT AND STRATEGIC REPORT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

The Trustees present their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to
the financial statements and comply with the charity's governing document, the Companies Act 2006 and
"Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)” (as amended for accounting periods commencing from 1 January 2016)

The charlty extended the reporting date from 31 May 2018 to 30 June 2019 to fall in line with the reporting
date of Everton Footbail Club. The figures presented in the Financial Statements represent period of 12
months, while the comparative figures for the period ended 30 June 2019 represent 13 months.

Objectives and activities

The charity was incorporated as a company limited by guarantee on 31 July 2003 and registered as a charity
on 10 September 2003. It commenced activities on 1 June 2004,

It is governed by its memorandum and articles of association and its objects are:-

« To promote community participation in healthy recreation by providing facilities for the playing of
football and other sparts capable of improving physical health;

* To provide and assist in providing facilities for sport, recreation or other leisure time occupation of
such persons who have need for such facliities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement,
poverty or social and economic circumstances or for the public at large in the Interests of social
welfare and with the object of improving their conditions of life;

+ The relief of sickness and preservation of people with a disability by the provision of facilities for
recreation and other leisure time occupation for such persons, in particular but not exclusively by
providing opportunities for competitive and non-competitive sport to assist their integration into
society,

. To advance the education of children and young people and to provide opportunities for them to
develop their full capabilities and enable them to become responsible members of society so that their
conditions of life may be improved.

The user groups are local schools, colleges and disability organisations.

The day to day business of the charity is conducted under the controt of the Chief Executive Officer, who
reports to the Board of Trustees at their regular meetings.

Public benefit ) ) ' _ . o
The Trustees are aware of the Charity Commission's guidance in relation to public benefit. It is the opinion of

the Trustees, that this report demonstrates how the charity provides public benefit.

The Trustees have paid dus regard to guidance issued by the Charity Commission in deciding what activities
the charity should undertake.
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Strategic report
The description under the headings "Achievements and performance” and “Financial review" meet the
company law requirements for the Trustees to present a strategic report.

Achievements and parformance

Ovarview

The year July 2020 to June 2021 has been another period of growth and development for Everton in the
Community. In line with our five-year growth strategy, we have continued to work hand-in-hand with our fans,
neighbours, partners and local community groups, developed new partnerships, grown our workforce and

transformed and evolved our delivery to best support our participants and the local community during the
coronavirus pandemic,

And whilst the pandemic continued to put a stop to the majority of our face-to-face delivery, our staff and
volunteers continued to deliver each of our 40+ social projects to participants across the Liverpool City
Region, albeit in a newly adapted virtual format, as well as increased outreach through welfare check-in calls,
socially distanced doorstep drop-offs and a limited amount of face-to-face delivery for some of our most
vulnerable participants.

Our Blue Family campaign, delivered in coliaboration with Everton Football Club, continued to provide life-
saving support to fans, participants and those most in need across the region. We reacted quickly and
strongly in identifying other social needs that have arisen as a result of the pandemic and immediately set
about putting funding in place to support initiatives and/or projects to specifically tackle these needs, such as
the widening education inequality gap, digital poverty, uniform poverty and social isolation.

The last 12 months has seen Everton in the Community receive averwheiming support from fans, old and new
partners and the general public, all of which has helped us to reach out to more people than ever befare and
aliow us to act quickly and efficiently when we see a need in the local community.

We reflect with pride on the continued success of the work undertaken day in and day out by our staff in
delivering our social programmes and thank them for their continued dedication and commitment.

Below are selected highlights from across the charity's pillars and key projects from July 2020 to June 2021.

Youth Engagement

2019/20 saw Everton in the Community's Youth Engagement team expand its Impact model intoc more areas
across Liverpool City Region. Building on the impact from the Home Office Early Intervention Youth Fund and
Premier League Community grants, the charity secured further monies from the Merseyside Police Violence
Reduction Partnership to prevent serious violence and tackle gang culture across Liverpool.

This ad_ditional funding has allowed the team to develop the Impact model within South Sefton, Knowsley,
North Liverpool, Speke-Garston and Wirral, with the initiative continuing to work to inspire young people and

reduce the number of ‘at risk' young people from disengaging in school, becoming NEET (Not in Education,
Employment or Training) or engaging in criminal culture.

The strategy behind the Impact model centres around four interlocking themes that play an important role in

the work Everton in the Community does within communities and schools: Community, Education, Support
and Pathways.

Community

The last 12 months saw our Everton PL Kicks specifically target young people aged 8-18 from North
Lwerpoo.l,_sefton, Birkenhead, Knpwsley, Speke and Hatton through community activities, after school, half
term activities and weekend sessions. Young people who attend our sessions report improved physical and

mental wellbeing as well as being provided with opportunities to take part in competitiv i
activities and develop their skills and knowledge. P . Petive sport and physical
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Our PL Kicks team works with the young people to deliver workshops, qualifications ané provide them with
access to a wide variety of activities linked to area needs through physical and virtuai sesslons.

Managing physical delivery during national and local lockdowns has been difficult, especially with staff and
participant Isolation bubbles also causing disruption, The changing rules around the delivery numbers has
meant that a considerable proportion of our regular young people had to take it In tums to participate.
Therefore, we focused on ensuring participants are safe, engaged and have essentials at home and through
our Blue Family campaign, were able to deliver more than 3,200 food parcels and 4,200 hot meals to our
young people and their famllies as well as offering increased support through weifare calls and mentoring.

The coming year will see a group of young males from Liverpool 4 represent England in the Street Child World

Cup and the Everton PL Kicks staff are supporting these individuals with a range of activities and workshops
to best prepare them to compete

Education .

Evertan In the Community's work with primary and secondary schools means the charity can nat only deliver
lts own awareness educational programmes, but it can also build relationships with young people through
their education journey to provide a more in-depth level of support, advice and mentoring. This includes an

enterprise programme, sports activities, vocational pathways and bespoke educational projects that includes
PHSE activities.

Primary School Delivery

The 2020/21 season saw the Premier League Primary Stars team continue to deliver its full programme to
partner gchools throughout the pandemic. Staff team delivered virtual events and education activations across
the academic year engaging with more than 1,500 young people as wall as continued supporting teachers in
PE lessons across the city, with 49 teachers gaining valuable knowledge and skills in Physical Education
delivery. The recruitment of qualified teachers has allowed the PLPS team to provide 86 Maths and 132
English lessons to bridge the gap whilst still delivering 186 PSHE lessons. Alongside this, partner schools took
part in social action prajects throughout the year to better their communities.

choo i
PL Inspires Profect
Studants associated with the PL Inspires programme have various external, environmental, and personai risk
factors that can prevent them from achieving their full potential and so we work with these students in small
groups with bespoke holistic programmes to engage and support them back into education whilst raising their
individual personal and educational aspirations.

Our Impact Model supports young people with the transition to secondary school and supports a studer_mt's
journey right through the Key Stages and Post-16, using mentoring as a key engagement tool when working
with those with complex needs.

Delivery during the challenging 2020/21 season has involved cohort work wim students across Merseyside
taking part in empowering social action projects with the aim of Improylng their schaol sites for students to
enjoy, as well as our recently launched E-STEAM project which has given students the chance to discover
experiences and opportunities they may not have otherwise been exposed to. We have also piloted small
cohorts focusing on topics such as ‘mental health and drama’ for students wh9 have peen paniculady affec;ed
by the coronavirus pandemic, helping them to overcome their struggles and issues in a diverse and creative
way.

New Futures Programme _
Qur New Futureg programme works with young psople aged 15+ who are classed as being NEET and/or

those indlviduals who leave school with no progression and are now formally NEET.
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The main aim of the programme is to support re-engagement in school for ‘at risk’ NEETs and encourage
involvement in the charity's Pathways programme and Introduce young people to vocational qualifications
such as customer services and Sport Leaders. The programme also helps young people to identify
pragression opportunities into further education, apprenticaships, or the world of work.

The last year has seen us work with 58 individuals who have gained progression into further edupatioq,
employment or tralning. Predominantly the ‘at-risk’ NEETs are often in Year 11 and are referred to us via their
schools and/or our internal programmes such as PL [nspires and PL Kicks. This cross-coflaboration between
programmes results in the best possible support for our young participants.

National Citizen Service

The 2020/21 season saw our NCS programme engage with young people through various projects both in the
community and in schools. The Summer programme was repurposed and repackaged to ‘Keep Doing Good'
to support young people to design and deliver social action projects in their community with the focus being on
supporting communities as the city came out of lockdown. The summer delivery was a resounding success
with over 150 young people collectively delivering 4,500 hours of sacial action in their local communities as
well as galning qualifications in emergency first aid and Sports Leaders ‘Go Lead'.

A new strand of NCS was piloted.in the Autumn term with us delivering PSHE style sessions in schools across
Liverpool City Region, with the main aim being to support young people with personal development actlvities
that they would have missed out on due to lockdown, and all activities were designed to supplement the
school curriculum. Our Autumn half term provision was agaln non-residential, but we were able to engage 45
young people and provide them with outward bound activities as part of our offer and each young person
completed 30 hours of social action.

E-STEAM

Recognising the need to address the growing skills gap between young people and STEM-related further
education and employment opporiunities, we launched ‘E-STEAM’, an educational programme that uses
creative and practical activities in addition to sducatianal interventions to create excitement and inspire
aspirations to pursue potential STEM career options.

E-STEAM was launched in the latter stages of the 2020/21 season and with the support of key partner
organisations, we were able to engage more than 420 young people through the programme, bringing
technology to communities through robotics with the aim of developing digital skills and competence through
the use of Sphero and Lego Education products such as Spike Prime and Essential.

We are already seeing that E-STEAM is changing the way our young people view STEM based subjects. We
are able to provide opportunities and experlences to challenge the perception that STEM subjects are purely
for academics by using practical, hands-on activities to develop problem solving, teamwork and
communication - ensuring we are helping young people to be ready for the challenges of evaryday life.

Everton Apprenticeships
Everton in the Community’s Apprenticeship team has adapted its delivery model and made its offer more

accqsgible durir_\g. the pandemic by switching to remote delivery on Microsoft Teams, with all apprentices
receiving full training and support from charity staff, including cyber awareness tralning.

As a re§ult, the team have‘managed to fully maintain its delivery and gain achievements on all the
qualifications we currently deliver such as ILM Level 3 and 5 in Management and Business Admin Level 3.

We are also now working with City and Guilds, ILM and TQUK as end point assessment organisations to
expand our delivery offer.
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Tpere are currently 22 apprentices enrolled on our programme from Liverpool & Aintree NHS Trust and
Liverpool Hea(t _and Chest Hospital NHS Trust who are warking towards achieving qualifications in Level 3
Business Administration and Level 5§ Management with a 100% pass rate. in the 2020/21 season, as many as

87% of Business Administration apprentices achleved distinction, with 80% of Management apprentices also
securing a distinction.

During this time, we have also introduced a new Level 2 award in Effective Mentoring, this qualification has
been rolled out to clubs via the Premier League Charitable Foundation and to date we have successfully

delivered to 55 participants as well as introducing a Level 3 certificate In Mentoring which is being piloted to
saven participants at an external club.

Pathways

The charity's Pathways programme Is designed to help young people build skills for the future within the

construction, sports, media, education and hospitality sectors and engages with ‘disengaged’ young people
between the ages of 12 and 24 years of age.

The past year has seen Pathways provide more than 500 students with an exclusive insight into the world of
work and a chance to interact directly with potential employers across a variety of sectors. Our mass
participation events during collapsed currlculum days have seen staff engage with full year groups, delivering
workshops on mental health, careers and wellbeing with feedback recsived from schools being that students’
attendance and performance both improved during our dslivery.

Support .

The 2020/21 season saw Everton in the Community's Support team provide targeted support to over 200
young people who are displaying key risk factors within the ‘Impact Model', Partner schools will identify
persistently absent students, those who have been displaying risky behaviours, those who have witnessed
domestic violence and/or those who have known family/peer links to serious organised crime, and the

charity's staff will work with these young people in small cohorts to ensure that quality work is completed with
maximum Impact.

Home Is Where The Heart Is '

The charity's four-bedroomed house, which offers semi-independent living to young people facing
homelessness, has now been operatlonal for two years, accommodating up to four residents at any cne time
with a live-in house parent.

Home Is Where the Heart Is continued to operate at full capacity throughout the pandemic, SUpponing young
aduits to develop the skills they need to live independently and has seen great outcomes during .thls time,
including residents moving into their own tenancles, gaining full time employment and achieving qualifications.

The pandemic meant that our outreach service was drawn to a halt, but the Support team continued to
provide help and assistance to young adults in need through phone contact and video calls. One notable
outcome was a member of the taam supporting a male into rehabiiitation to beat a cocaine addition, he is now
in his own tenancy and celebrating one-year free from drugs.

41 Goodlson - Footsteps 41 _
Staff have continued to consistently deliver the Footsteps 41 programme through the 20/21 season despite
the challenges presented by the pandemic. Sessions have been different to normal de}wery, with many haymg
to be on site, to fall in line with Govemment guidelines and staff have haq to be creative and ensure sessions
have been engaging as weil as educational. Workshops have primanl_y focused on persanal, social and
development sesslons (anger management, healthy relationships, Black Lives Matters and managing feelings)
and we have also ensured that health and fitness remains a core part of our programme as we follow a
‘healthy body, healthy mind' approach with our young people.
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Health and Sport . ) -

Everton in the Community's Heaith and Sport pillars have a focus on tackling health inequalities across the
life-course, spanning from conception through to the current oldest participant aged 104 years-old. There are
a total of 35 projects operating under these pillars with each project serving a different population group, such
as people living with dementia or military veterans; each population group has been identified as they are at

an increased risk of experiencing a poorer quality of life and worse health outcomes than the general
population. .

Across the areas, significant funding from the Community Match Challenge Fund allowed for important
provision to be delivered to support our local communities through the challenges of the pandemic and
associated lockdown restrictions. The target was to reach 1,320 people and this was greatly surpassed with a
total of 5,484 people engaged and supported.

A second year's funding was secured to sustain the services of our own EitC GP, Dr Chris Pritchard, who has
proved to be a valuable asset supporting participants and staff by providing a professional GP service in our
community setting. New funding has also been secured to appoint a GP Trainee to further improve this
professional offering and support individuals who would not normally engage with a GP in a medical setting.

All areas operated well both financially and with meating project targets during the 2020/21 season, which is
very commendable considering the ongoing challenges presented by the pandemic. Furthermore, new

funding was secured to create additional projects in the areas of diabetes prevention, supporting new fathers
and supporting older military veterans.

Tackling the Blues, in partnership with Edge Hill University, has been scaled up and now includes art provision
thanks to the new partnership with TATE Liverpool. The programme has reached over 1,500 children and

young people wha have been identified with poor mental health and are now supported on an ongoing weekly
basis.

Our ongoing pértnership with Edge Hill University has continued to be very beneficial with securing funding
and as a result a PhD student and four MSc students are now available to us to help demonstrate the impact

of our Health and Sport areas. A number of Open Access Journals will also be produced to further enhance
our credibility.

The People’s Place

The previous 12-months has seen significant funds secured to help move closer to the target of £2.2m to
complete the build of The Peaple’s Place. Funding from the Community Match Challenge Fund, the proceeds
of the Howard's Way Film and the new Causeway partnership alongside ongoing conventional fundraising
efforts has seen the total raised reach £1.7m. Unfortunately, substantiai fundraising activities {i.e. Gala

Dinners, 5km challenges) have been cancelled due to lockdown restrictions and several capital grant
programmes have also been paused or removed.

Eitq were commissiqned to deliver a suicide prevention programme across Cheshire and Merseyside, with a
particular focus on middie-aged men - the most at risk of suicide - and this work has created a network of over

30 organisations that will form a referral directory for The People’s Place to further enhance the offering that
the facility will provide. :

Interest in_The People's Place has continued, and the planned purpose-built mental heaith hub has been
Pro_moted I numerous national and international conferences and received interest from various high-profile
individuals and networks including Roman Kemp, Dr Alex George, CHAMPS (Cheshire and Merseyside Public
Hga_a?th Collaborative and Westminster). As a result of the pandemic, the risk factors for poor mental heakth and
suicide have been amplified, meaning the need for The People's Place is greater than ever.

Planning permission has been secured and a full tender
Work has now begun to build this mental heatth f
complete for the new football season in 2022,

der process has taken place and contractors appointed.
acility with the intention to have The People's Place build
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Health and Wellbeing

Despite the myrjad of challenges, the Covid- 19 pandemic has presented during the past 12 months, Everton
in the Commumty’s Health and Wellbsing department has continued to fulfil a vital role supporting the health
and wellbeing needs of Merseyside’s most vulnerable and hardest to reach. :

The charity's commitment to support those most affected by the pandemic has seen the launch of a number of
new Covid-response initiatives including ‘Out of the Blue', an online mental health education course ran in
partnership with mental health practice IStraker Consultants, enabling members of the community ta access
expert advice and guidance from trained mental health professionals.

Through its diverse range of impactful community programmes, EitC's health and wellbeing provision
continues to help positively challenge health inequalities and improve overall quality of life for society’s most
in-need and at-risk. This work continues to expand its reach and reputation locally and Increasingly on a
regional and national level. To this end, Everton in the Community was invited to spearhead a new Alliance for
Sport and Mental Heaith, which launched in January this year, alongside partners from across Europe. The
project, funded by the European Union, promotes coliaboration between mental health professionals and the
sports and physical activity sector to raise awareness of the added value sport and physical activity can have
for promoting better mental health and wellbeing outcomes,

In April this year, EitC's face-to-face delivery recommenced to coincide with the launch of a number of new
programmes including ‘Royal Blues' - a targeted programme supporting middle aged military veterans at rigk
of social Isolation - thanks to £30,000 of funding secured from the Armed Forces Covenant Trust. The
department has also developed a female specific refugee and asylum seeker provision through the ‘Welcome
through Football' programme to ensure women and girls have the same access to engage in education and
football. EitC's 'Kick Cancer' programme has made significant reinforcements upskilling staff to further expand
their expertise in the delivery of high-quality, safe and appropriate physical activity prescription for those living
with a cancer diagnosis.

The department's ‘Walking Football programme has also made strides in expanding the range of
opportunities provided for more people to remain physical activity in later life. With funding secured from the
Football Foundation, this has seen the development of a new pre and post retirement programme ‘Keep Your
Boots On’ being launched, ensuring those already retired or soon to be, can remain physically and socially
connected with other likeminded people. Further developments within the programme have centred on plans
to develop a walking football offer for people iiving with Dementia and Parkinson’s. Premier League funding
has also helped to ensure that our Stand Together programme has been able to continue providing vital
wellbeing support and further expand its provision supporting socially isolated older people in residential
settings as well as carers of loved ones living with Dementia.

EitC's Veterans Hub (EVH) continues to make a significant difference in the lives of veterans and their
families, further cementing its position as a market leader in veteran support community. This has bqen
demonstrated with EVH and its programme lead, Dave Curtis, being shortlisted for ‘Health and waellbeing
project’ and ‘Inspiration of the year’ at the English Veterans Awards, with Dave taking home the Silver Award
on the night. EitC’'s commitment to supporting serving and ex-military personnel has also been recognised
with the awarding of the prestigious Armed Forces Covenant Silver Award.

Neighbourhood . _ _
Thegpast 12 months has seen the Neighbourhood programme continue its excellent work in supporting local
residents and businesses in the Blue Mile surrounding Goodison Park.

i i ing indivi he entire life-course from
The programme has continued to deliver 11 projects supporting ‘lndeuals across the en
‘Staypan% Play’ toddler groups to ‘Blue Buddy' check-in calls and intergeneration sessions in local care homes,
with a focus on reducing social isolation and providing a platform for meaningful friendships to be developed.
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The:Neighbourhood programme has been at the core of the. Club and charity'’s collaborative Blue Family
delivery and has provided further support with the launch of its half-term holiday camps for young people from
crisls families reliant on Free School Meals during the 13 weeks where schools are closed each year. The

camps offer young people the chance to learn how to cook, participate in enrichment sessions and gain
access to alternative sports.

To further support with the effects of the pandemic in local care homes, the Neighbourhood team created an
intergenerational project with young people in the area and local care homes, providing pen pal letters,
creative poetry and virtual cheerleading sessions. The scheme has since been expanded to link into the
Reading Buddies progfamme, with virtual reading sessions taking place between care homes and schools.

During the 2020/21 season, the Neighbourhood programme has continued to provide housing and
resettlement support for local neighbours through its Red Cross Refugee and Asylum Sea}«ar programme,
supporting up to 20 families per week. This programme links to the Riverside housing drop-in service which

they run to enable resettiement, as well as English sessions, employability workshops and also family support
through Sefton Baby Baskets.

Through the development of new relationships with local organisations, the Neighbourhood programme has
secured significant in-kind donations to support the Blue Family campaign, as well as other funding to ensure
that all 11 programmes are sustained for the fifth most deprived community in the UK. Funding pots secured
include monies from Merseyside Police to support half term activity for young people, £5,000 from Loan
Sharks to tackle illegal monsy lending within the Blue Mile, £10,000 in memory of a local Police Officer to
continue our crime awareness work within Kirkdale with hard-to-reach young peopte and £2,000 from Alpha
Taxis for our Reading Buddies project along with 100 books donated by Agent Marketing.

Alongside this, Everton Women's partner Lil-Lets again funded a further 12 months of knitting equipment for
our charity's ‘Sit and Knit' group, as well as the provision of matemity pads for the Liverpool Women's
Hospital. The sale of hats and cardigans knitted by the 'Sit and Knit' group has so far generated £28,000 for

the neonatal ward at the hospital. During 2020/21, our women knitted over 3,000 items for the babies on the
hospital's neonatal ward.

1

And further p,a"rtnerships have been developed, with funding secured for a holiday activity programme,

Starting Well Programme and Diabetes Awareness Programme to be rolled out across Liverpool 4 from
2021122 onwards.

Disability

The challenggs presented by the coronavirus pandemic have been difficult for the charity's disability
programme with staff being unable to deliver any face-to-face sessions and having to find different and
innovative ways to keep in touch with participants through regular phone calls and online training sessions.

However, despite th'ese.challenges, the Disability team were still able to bring new funding into the charity
thropgh a partnership \fvu.th Everton Football Club’s new technical kit provider Hummel as well as funding for
additional holiday activity sessions from Edsential. Additional funding was also secured through the

Govemment_and Steve Morgan Foundation-backed '‘Community Match Challenge Fund' to provide exira
support for disabled people who were isolating during the pandemic.

Due to restrictions in place around social distancin
with less participants than in previous years but de
connected with many of them and provide them wit

g and delivery and ongoing lockdowns, we have engaged
spite this, we have continued to find different ways to stay
h a vital, and sometimes lifesaving, service.




DocuSign Envelope ID: EC4FFF4D-D844-4BEC-A43C-8A791743D0F6

EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' REPORT AND STRATEGIC R
(CONTINUED) 16 REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Disability football teams

The start of the 2020/21 season saw a handful of players from our disability teams selected by Everton
Football Club and its technical kit provider hummel to front its third kit campaign In celebration of the 20th
anniversary of Everton in the Community’s disability programme. This was the first time that any club had
launched a new kit using just its disabled teams and the kit quickly became the fastest selling third kit in
Everton's history as well as attracting national and intemational acclaim for our commitment to showcasing
equality and diversity. As part of the new relationship with hummel, they donated £20,000 to the disability
programme for 20 participants to take part in the FA-delivered ‘Introduction into Football' qualification with the
long-term objective of the charity employing some of these Individuals as paid members of staff at a later date.

During the 2020/21 season, our weekly training sessions for our 11 disability teams had to be put on hold and
brought to an online format but we ensured that we maintained that regular contact through weekly check-in
calls, and funding from the Community Match Challenge Fund meant that we were able to provide additional
support for more than 120 of our disability players with regular food parcels, mental health support and
essentia! utility top-ups. We also worked to introduce weekly oniine sessions in addition to the coaching

sessions in & further effort to reduce social isolation amongst the teams with activities including quizzes and
football skills challenges.

in November 2020, we worked to ensure that we could still celebrate the successes of our players and teams
from the 2019/20 season. Thanks to sponsorship provided by SportTech, we were still able to deliver the
annual Disabitity Awards, albeit In an online format, with more than 100 players and their families tuning into
the event safely from the comfort of their own'homes to recognise the individual and collective achievements
of the 11 disability teams.

In May 2021 we were able to restart our face-to-face weekly coaching delivery at Archbishop Beck scheol for
all 11 of our disability teams which was a momentous occasion for all involved after having been separated for
more than 12 months.

Spaclal Edycation Needs Schools

In early March 2020, with the looming onset of the pandemic, we drew halt to our weekly face-to-face delivery
in Special Education Needs (SEN) schools due to a number of the children being classed as clinically
vulnerable. However, some of our SEN schools were still in operation for children who had to continue to go
into school during this time due to circumstances at home, and the charity's disability'team provided teaching
staff with simple educational videos for their pupils as well as session plans so teachers could continue
delivery of physical activity sessions and ensure their schoot routine was not facing further disruption.

Thanks to our Blue Family initiative we were also able to support pupilg and their families with weekly food
parcels, mental health support as well as financial assistance with utility bills.

When some restrictions were eased from late 2020, we were able to re-commence weekly delivery of physical
activity sesslons in a small number of our SEN schools, with this increasing as the academic year cgn‘unued
and by July 2021, we were back delivering in eight SEN schools across the region and engaged with more
than 280 disabled children during this time.

olida ivi . .
ictions i i | holiday
The restrictions in place because of the pandemic meant that we were unable to deliver our usua
activity sesslons for local disabled children throughout all of 2020 and into the ﬂrst_part of 2021, but we were
able to re-commence this from May and engaged with more than 55 disabled children through two holiday
sessions which were funded by Edsential and Halton Barough Coungil.

i i i i ical activity and enrichment
The Government-backed funding we received from Edsentlal is to deliver physica
opportunities for disabled children aged 12-16-years-olds who are currently in receipt of Free Schoo\ Meals.
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Alder ildren’s

For more than 12 years, our disabillty team have been delivering daily play therapy sessions to sick and
disabled children on the wards of Alder Hey Children’s Hospital, but Covid restrictions meant that we were
unable to have face-to-face contact and so we instead worked with the children via an electronic tablet and
delivered weskly online sessions. Throughout the 2020/21 season, we worked with more than 100 sick and
disabled children who were in the hospital receiving care.

Equali lversity and | jon .

Everton Football Club and Everton in the Community are committed to promoting equality and diversity across
all areas and work hard to ensure that it is embedded and celebrated in as many ways as possible. The
2020721 season has seen the introduction of a number of working groups made up from designated leads
across the Club and charity which focus on disability, women and girls, LGBTQ and race and ethnicity; these
groups mest quarterly to support the Club's and EitC's aims of becoming more inclusive.

The working groups have compiled a calendar of key dates which will be celebrated throughout the year
including Black History Month, International Women's Day and LGBTQ month among many others, and have
also introduced training for Club and charity staff on key topics such as supporting people with autism and
learning disabllities and deaf awareness sessions.

A working document has been put together to ensure the charity's Premier League-funded projects are more
representative of their local community and staff, through which protective characteristics such as disability,
race and ethnicity, and gender and under-represented groups within the staff worldorce will also be addressed
over the next one to two years.

Blue Family
In March 2020, Evarton Foatball Club and Everton in the Community launched ‘Blue Family', a coordinated
outreach and engagement campaign to maintain contact with fans and provide vital support and assistance to

some of the most vulnerable, socially isolated and at-risk members of the community in the wake of the
coronavirus pandemic.

Blue Family continued throughout the 2020/21 season and was supported by a core group of staff who were
seconded from their roles to maintain and graw the provision and by June 2021, Blue Family had provided
essential aid and support to more than 29,000 families and individuals living across Liverpool City Region.

Qutreach provision included, but was not limited to, essential food parcel distribution, financial assistance with

prescriptions, maobile phone credit and utilities, mental health support and advice and essential household
equipment.

The support of Blue Family was available to anyone in need regardless of whether they had any prior
connection with Everton Football Club and/or Everton in the Community, and hundreds of the 4,000+ referrals

received were from the families of pupils who attend the charity’s partner schools and existing and former
participants. ‘

Eyertor_) ir) the Qommupity's Neighbourhood team continued to be on hand to support the 10,000+ residents
living within the immediate vicinity of Goodison Park — one of the most socially deprived wards in England.
The team provided housing and money management support as well as advice on benefits and Universal

Credit, in addition to support for local refugees and asylum ssekers through the charity's ongoin relati i
with British Red Cross. y g v going relationship

The _Neighbourhood team secured external funding to raise awar
provide further support to local low-income families wh
by illegal money lending during the pandemic.

eness of the dangers of loan sharks and will
0 have perhaps been tempted by the quick fix provided

Our Youth Engagement team continued to m

( aintain contact with th i
increased its wrap-around support package, in 0, bostore suon oy rammes and

cluding intense mentori iti
its more vuinerable participants and families, a 2 oring, bespoke support and necassities for

: s well as preparing tools and resources to support ri i
concerns and possible bereavement support that might be needed now and in the future. PRort ising amxiety
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The charlty has also worked to provide additional support for the families of its young participants as well as
ensuring that the appropriate support and assistance is in place for vuinerable families of its 80 partner
schools across the Liverpool City Region. As all delivery takes place in areas of mass deprivation across
Liverpool City Region, Everton in the Community increased its outreach work to provide further support to
families who have been identified as a top priority and may be struggling due to loss of income.

Volunteering

Whilst Covid-19 brought hatt to much of Everton in the Community's traditional face-to-face delivery, the
chargty’s volunteers still played an important part in supporting the ‘Blue Family’ campaign which was set up to
provide vital aid and assistance to the most vuinerable individuals and families across Liverpoo!.

A large pool of volunteers helped to deliver essential food shops and fuel top ups to those living in crisis, as
well as supporting the charity's Blue Buddy scheme which provided regular phone calls to people who were
soclally isolated or lonely. In addition, our volunteers helped to create and deliver innovative ways to maintain
regular contact with our existing participants. For example, the creation of the Blue Base Buzz - a weekly
podcast to engage with our Pass on the Memories participants - and the delivery of online yoga sessions to
maintain the fitness of participants currently enrolled on our plethora of heaith and wellbsing programmes.
Lastly, In partnership with Docobo Ltd. our community volunteers delivered over 400 pleces of vital COVID
testing kit to various destinations across Liverpool.

And in June 2021, Everton in the Community was honored to announce that the charity had received The
Queen’s Award for Voluntary Service (QAVS) in recognition of the role and impact that its volunteers have
across Liverpool and beyond. Equivalent to an MBE, QAVS are the highest awards given to local voluntary
groups in the UK and are awarded for life. In addition to receiving The Queen’s Award for Voluntary Service,
Everton in the Community also received a special designation in recognition of the support provided to its local
community in response to the coronavirus pandemic.

The Blue Base

When we were able, The Blue Base continued to offer programmes which support our elderly participants who

are living with dementia and/or suffering from social isolation. Prior to the suspension of all football fixtures,

the venue also continued to host disabled Season Ticket Members ahead of alt home games, allowing them to
, escape the hustle and bustle of the surrounding streets around Goodison Park. Although suspended at

present, The Blue Base is also available for private hire, with all profits generated going back into Everton in

the Community.

Development . _

The 2020/21 season saw Everton in the Community’'s Development arm create a digital focus with the
purpose of engaging with donors, corporate parners and funders. As a result, .collabo.ratlons ywth other
partners and charities flourished as we worked to develop regular contact as well increasing funding growth
and opportunities during the continued Covid-19 lockdown and restrictions. These collaborations also served
to enhance our soclal impact.

Whilst Covid-19 severely curtailed many areas of income generation for the §econd successive season for
both our Fundraising and Lotteries department, we saw strong growth in our portfoho of Corporate
Partnerships which totalled 11 by the end of the 2020/21 season - a record number‘of charity partners to datg.
The complexity in working with this group of stakeholders nec_:es_sltated the 'creatmn of a clear stewardship
programme, enhanced communication and PR input as well as insight gvaluation.

-1 -
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The communication to Season Ticket Holders to refund their 2018/20 Season Ticket cost was met with a
genuine willingness of supporters to reach out in support of the Club and charity’s collaborative Blue Family
initiative to help those most vulnerable and disadvantaged, resulting In almost £400,000 worth of donations
which was then matched by Majority Shareholder Mr Moshiri and Club Chairman Bill Kenwright. All fans who
had donated were personally thanked in the form of phone calls from staff at Everton In the Community, with
each individual asked if they would like to receive more regular updates from the charity and with this

information, we were able to grow our database significantly to ensure future communication with this loyal
fanbase.

The development of relationships between Everton in the Community and Everton Football Club Partners aiso
flourished during the 2020/21 season with Cazoo, hummel, Davanti and Fanatics all contributing funding for a
range of programmaes, including the ‘Goals Far Good’ campaign to support equality and diversity within our
Disability Programme during its 20th year and funding the uniform poverty initiative. With the creation of clear
evaluations on the reach of their impact, we look forward to their support will continuing in 2021/22 season.

The pandemic honed our skills in the digital arena, and it became apparent that this was to be a key area of
innovatian for both society and our charity. The Youth Engagement team created the E-STEAM programme,
which was supported by the Development team who then created a stakeholder forum for companies who
were already delivering in STEAM-related sectors to engage with the charity. As a result, six businesses came
together to provide funding, kit and knowledge to help Everton in the Community become the first football
charitable arm to go live with a mobile STEM education programme.

The success of the E-STEAM programme meant we were able to grow our ambition surrounding STEM to
include the requirement for a Digital Skills Base. The charity’s Development team has worked dosely
throughout the season with a philanthropic major donor who gives his time and expertise to reach other fike-
minded and socially conscious Evertonians to pledge funding to enable the kit-out of this innovation centre.
As such, the concept of the ‘First STEAM Squad was created with a target of £250,000 set - to date, £144,000
has already been received with members of the First STEAM Squad meeting bi-monthly for updates on the E-
STEAM initiative and the progress of the Digital Skills Base.

This cohort of philanthropists will now become the foundation of aur major donor strategy.

Everton Lotteries
The 2020/21 season was like no other in the history of Everton Lotteries, with the coronavirus pandemic
changing all previous plans and strategy. The team had to quickly evolve to be able to maintain the lottery

efficiently and effectively, as cash collections and membership sign-ups - which are usually a face-to-face
operation - were halted due to the pandemic.

The department faced further challenges during the summer - including remote system access, inability to
pollect entry fees, and issues with signing and issuing winners cheques - however the team adapted to solve
issues as they came along and were ultimately able to keep the Lottery running. This is a particularly

impressive given that a number of other football clubs had to suspend their draws due to their over-refiance on
¢ash collections and their inability to run the draws off-site.

A new Everton Lotteries Committee was created to ensure a high leve! of governance and reporting was in
place, along with the introduction of monthly committee meetings, and during the 2020/21 season there was a
full review and update of the Licence Conditions, Cades of Practice, policy documentation and a new
constitu_tion for Everton Lotteries. An important recommendation made by the committee was to seek an
alternative to running our own lottery, the Lotto Super Draw, in-houss, as the impact caused by Govemment
lockdowns _had highlighted a high level of risk and the draw was also reliant on a very antiquated system. A
research piece was undertaken to look for a new Extemal Lottery Management company (ELM) that could
take over the running of the £1 lottery, and the decision was taken to proceed with Sterling, who already
manage our £2 product, The People's Lottery. The new product will be launched in early 2022.

The affiliate arm of Everton Lotteries is one area w
12 months, we added Vauxhall Motors FG, The
programme will remain an important part of our o

e were able to grow during 2020/21, and over the course of
Vibe and North Wales Super Kids as affiliate partners. This
verall strategy moving forwards.
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Whilst the pandemic provided some very difiicult challenges, Everton Lotteries have survived and enhanced

their offer with @ robust and clear govemnance structure that is ready to build on and flourish in 2021/22
season. '

Fundraising

A_Il activities in relation to fundraising are carried out in line with guidance from the Fundraising Regulator and
sit inside the Code of Fundraising Practice. All staff who are Involved in fundraising are trained in line with the

coc!a_. Specific training is given around vulnerable people who might be adversely affected by fundraising:.
activities. No compliance issues with the code were identified.

During the 2020/21 season, Everton in the Community’s Fundraising department continued to offer rewarding

anddinsgin'ng opportunities for supporters to engage with the charity despite the challenges presented by the
pandsmic.

Below is @ summary of fundraising achievements during these 12 months:
« The virtual concept of the Sk ‘if You Know Your History' run was launched, collaborating with BTR

Liverpool. A total number of 436 people took part from eight different countries worldwide.

A Comedy Bingo virtual event aimed at families and our older programme participants took place on

Friday 26 March, with the evening bringing lots of fun and entertainment straight into paricipants

living rooms along with the opportunity to win some great prizes.

+ A virtual Mother's Day event was hosted, which was the first time the charity had set out to engage
with an all-female audience - all guests recelved a Mother's Day bundle which included locally
produced gifts as well as access to a Zeom call on Mother's Day with guest speakers covering
content such as yoga and meditation, nutrition and skincare. '

+ In celebration of Christmas, we hosted a virtual Grotto and, with the help of Blue Santa, pre-recorded
200 personalised messages which were distributed to young Evertonians all around the world on
Christmas Eve.

+ Sadly Covid-19 had a devastating impact on families who support Everton in the Community and we
saw a huge rise in people donating directly to the charity, with 76 families choosing to donate in
memory of their loved ones.

« 11 cyclists took part in a 24-hour cycle challenge in memory of their friend who was sadly killed in a
road traffic accident.

« A portfolio was developed of local and national businesses who have chosen to support Everton in
the Community as their ‘Charity of the Year' and the Fundraising team has worked hard on creating
bespoke opportunities for companies to engage with us and feel empowered to fundraise for us.

+ Phases two and three of Spellow Brick Lane were promoted with the bricks continuing to be popular
amongst the fanbase with a total of 855 bricks being sold to date.

+ We continued to build on our Free Wills offering with monthly online meetings taking place with
paralegals to explore ways in which they can assist us in developing this in-demand service and have
since established an online registration form which received than 175 online referrals during the
season. .

« We continued to provide support and assistance for fundraisers who were taking on their own
personal chalienges and events in aid of EitC including a 100-mile walk, online raffles, haircuts, runs
and much more. _

« We engaged with more than 200 fundraisers and donars }hrough calls, texts gnd emails to ensure
they continued to feel connected to Everton in the Community during uncertain times. ‘

« We worked collaboratively with Everton Football Club to help create and sell a range of b_gspoke
items in aid of Biue Family including a limited-edition ‘Spirit of the Biues’ vinyl and a children’s story
hook. ’ )

« Online auctions continued to prove popular with supporters having the opportunity to bid for exclusive

ieces of merchandise. . . )

. S\Iee collaborated with Everton Disabled Supporters Assaciation to host an online raffle helping them to

ise funds for their cause. ‘

. wes developed a relationship with Matchworn Shirts who auctioned off a}| matchworn shirts from the
FA Cup Quarter Final v Manchester City in aid of Everton in the Community.

-13 -
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» We continued to engage with fundraisers and donors and introduced a fundraising newsletter which
included success stories, alternative ways to support the charity and upcoming events.

+ Throughout the season, the Fundraising team attended regular online training sessions through the
Institute of Fundraising to develop their knowledge of the sector.

Corporate Partnerships '
The 2020/21 season saw the charity's Corporate Partnerships team develop and implement a stewardship
programme to ensure regular and focused contact with Everton In the Community’s growing portfolio of
corporate partners, and these new processes offer a number of benefits including:
« Formulated account management to ensure optimum level of service.
« Scoped out partnership entry levels and a robust stewardship plans which utilises the breadth of
Everton in the Community assets to offer a unified approach and clear corporate donor journey.
» A tangible Charlty of the Year partnership offering along with its own brand and supporting materials
for the comporate to use to engage and enthuse its staff.
We have recognised that a Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system is critical to the corporate
partner journey and so have worked closely with the Club's Insight and IT team during the last 12 months to
build a user friendly and comprehensive corporate database to record, monitor and report.

The development and introduction of a new Everton in the Community website now provides us with the
opportunity to showcase our corporate partners and we have worked closely with the charity's
Commuhications team during this time to develop a more engaging and visual offering to best highlight our
corporate partnership and Charity of the Year packages and benefits.

The charity's new Corporate Partnership Manager led on bids and funding applications fram various sources
in the latter half of 2020 and implemented and managed a funding tracking dashboard. 10 funding bids were
drafted to raise funds for the Blue Family initiative with a 40% success rate and there is now a continuing
‘research and seek’ system in place to review relevant funding opportunities.

In addition to this work, we have also created bespoke pitches and proposal for securing new corporate
supporters and by the end of the 2020/21 season, Everton in the Community had five corporate Partners,
three Supporters, one Friend and four Charity of the Year partnerships and had introduced a business plan for
2021/22 to retain and uplift the charity's existing partners as well as increase the current portfolio.

Key highlights fpr the Corporate Partnerships team during this time period include:
* Activation of Causeway corporate relationship including leading on a research piece, Charity of the

Yfeg; p';!lll'.tnership and behind-the-scenes work on a national cycle challenge with a fundraising target
(o} mithon.,

« Supported on pionesring E-STEAM ambition with stakeholders.

* Led on development of major donor programme, ‘First STEAM Squad', with supportive stewardship
programme and calendar of events.
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Media & PR

The 2020/21 season was & busy yet successful periad for Everton in the Community’s Communications
department with the development and implementation of a new and improved website, significant growth
across all four of the charity’s social media platforms, increased communications and PR support across all
pillars as well as a growth in extemal coverage achieved in a wide range of local, regional, national and
international outlets and an increased focus on stakeholder communications.

Despite the abvious restrictions, Everton in the Community’s media channels have continued to excel in
parallel to the rest of the charity. A huge driving force behind its growth was the introduction of a dedicated

Everton in the Community website, providing a ‘one stop shop' for the latest news, dedicated landing pages
for all programmes, and an efficient and easy way for supporters to donate to the charity.

The new website has enabled the charity to gain a combined reach of 68,000 unique individuals across its
social channels with 76,000 impressions, whilst the charity's social media channels increased its following by
a further 13,000 users, with its content reaching over 14million users. Thanks to our Facebook fundraising
platform, £2,468 was also raised by supporters for Everton in the Community. .
A monthly Everton in the Community newsletter was introduced for all stakeholders, containing news and
updates of key achievements and progress across the charity each month. The quarterly briefings with key

stakeholders moved to an online format due to the coronavirus pandemic, with a higher attendance rate than
ever before due to the accessibility of the events.

Media articles and press releases piaced throughout the season were read by mare than 208million people
worldwide, through a wide range of online, broadcast and print news outlets. Coverage inciuded full and
double-page spreads in national media for our Blue Family campaign, thought leadership pieces placed in
charity and business media, and increased profile and reputation for the charity's work as a whole, as well
increased visibility and awareness for its corporate partner relationships.

An overview of key PR highlights throughout the 2020/21 is as follows:

« The charity worked with the Premier League editorial team to tell the story of a 41 Goodison
participant who has turned his life around with the help and support of Everton in the Community and
its Biue Family campaign.

+ The charity's Biue Family campaign was referenced in an article in the ft.com about the impact that
coronavirus has had in North Liverpoo!, with Richard Kenyon interviewed about how Everton in the
Community has worked to provide emergency relief to families across Liverpool City Region.

- Players from the charity’s disability programme were chasen to be the face of the Club’s 2020/21 third
kit campaign with a wide array of coverage praising the launch for its inclusivity and diversity.
Coverage was secured in outlets including Liverpool Echo, FC Business, ITV News, Sky Sports
News, 90min.com and The Kitman. _

« A young Evertonian called Isaac raised more than £7,000 for lacal charities Including Everton in the
Community through various fundraising challenges during lockdown. News of Isaac’s admirable
fundraising was picked up by the Liverpool Echo and Radio Merseyside. )

« The Club’s Principal Partner Cazoo pledged its support to Everton in the Community in $eptember
and created the ‘Goals For Good' initiative, donating £1,000 to the charity for every Premier League
goal scored during 2020/21. Coverage of the announcement was secured in Liverpool Echo,
Professional Liverpaol, Explore Liverpool and The Guide as well as Everton fan sites.

« It was announced that Everton in the Community had secured significant funding from the Steve
Morgan Foundation in November 2020 to roll out its Impact Mode! in Speke-Garston. Coverage was
achieved across a wide range of local and regional charity, business and consumer media. .

« With the United Kingdom going back into lockdown in January 2021, _Everton in tr.\e_Commumty
announced that Blue Family will remain operating as long as there is a need within the local
community with this news picked up by local consumer meQna and charity trade press. .

« Richard Kenyon spoke to Press Association about the charity's Covid response and Blue Family work
with his interview being carried in more than 100 regional titles across the UK and Sky Ngws. )

. Sunday Times Northern Editor spoke with Carlo Ancelotti and Dominic Calvert-Lewin about their
involvement with Blue Famlly, resulting in coverage on page 10 of the paper and ontine. This story
was also repeated on page six of the Daily Express the following day.

T
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« Everton In the Community kicked off a six-week mini-series with BBC Radio Merseyside, scratching
below the surface of Blue Family and January’s speakers Included Sue Gregory and Richard Kenyon.

+ Premier League Productions spoke to Tom Davies about his involvement with Everton in the
Community during his time at the Club for a special feature that was shared with all intemational
broadcasters.

« Everton in the Community worked with the Daily Mirror-on a special two-page feature about its Blue
Family initiative, featuring interviews with Richard Kenyon and Tom Davies.

» Richard Kenyon spoke to Business Insider for a speclal feature on the Club and charity's Covid
response and the impact Everton in the Community has had in the community during the pandemic.

« Everton in the Community announced the launch of its new website and new regular giving campaign,
Together We Can, with pick-up secured in a number of local business titles including Business Up
North, Bdaily News and Explore Liverpool.

« Following on from the charity's April stakeholder webinar, Everton in the Community announced that it
had supported 30,000 individuals through Blue Family and also evaluated its previous 12 months with
pick-up from charity and business outlets including Liverpool Business News, Bdaily News and
Charity Today.

« Seamus Coleman spoke to Premier League Productions about his unique relationship with Everton in
the Community and his pride in seeing the growth of the charity over his time at the Club,

+ Everton in the Community worked with Civi! Society magazine to provide comment from Director of
Development Lesley Beattie about the charity's Covid response and how collaborative working with
new partners has enabled the charity to support more people than ever before.

+ The charity announced the launch of its new 'E-STEAM' programme with a wide range of coverage
secured in local, business, charity and education trade media.

« Charity CEO Richard Kenyon spoke to FC Business for a double page spread on Everton in the
Community's Biue Family initiative and outlined the charity's future ambitions arcund The People’s
Place and E-STEAM. .

* In the first week of June, Everton in the Community was awarded The Queen’s Award for Voluntary
Service in recognition of its volunteering programme. The press release was picked up by Liverpool

Echao (online and print), Confidential Liverpoo!, Granada Reports and Charity Today and mores.

It was announced that the charity has secured government funding to deliver a new programme

alongside PSS supporting new dads. The press release was picked up by North West Connected,
Charity Today and Business Up North.

Financial review :

Incoming resources for the year amounted to £5,275,360 (2020 £5,841,023). Overall income exceeded
expenditure by £963,734 (2020 £1,207 454), including capital grants recéived of £375,000 (2020 Nil) and
gains on investments on £85,959 (2020 loss £676). Unexpended grants and restricted donations and legacies
amounted to £3,957,050 (2020 £3,048,685) and general reserves amounted to £2809,792 (2020
£2,854,423). Of the general reserves £1,603,491 (2020 £1,749,851) had been designated for specific
purposes. Unrestricted free reserves amounted to £1,274,150 (2020 £1,169,552).

The cash and bank balances stood at £3,200,009 (2020 £2,068,427).

itis thg pgligy of the charity }hat unrestricted funds which have not been designated for a specific use should
be maintainéd at a Ieve] equivalent to between three and six month's expenditure. The Trustees consider that
reserves at this level will ensure that, in the event of a significant drop in funding, they will be able to continue

thg charity's current activities while consideration is given to ways in which additional funds may be raised.
This level of reserves has besn maintained throughout the year.
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Investments policy

Under the Articles of Association the charity has the power to make any investment the trustees see fit. The
Board approved the appointment of Quilter Cheviot as Investment Fund Managers to the charity with
discretionary powaers to invest funds In line with the Ethical Investment Policy restrictions detailed below:

Fund Managers will have discretion to invest in any assets subject to the following restrictions:
+ no more than 5% of the entire portfolio under discretionary management may be Invested at any time
in any one stock. This rule is to apply on a look-through basis;
+ funds are to be placed in regulated assets and markets.
The Trustees attach great importance to avoiding investments that could be seen to be at odds with its values
and mission. To that end there shall be no investment in any company which derives more than 10% of its

global turnover from those assets which are deemed to be unethical, as agreed with the investment Manager
from time to time,

The exclusions agreed shall apply on a look-through basls. It is recognised that from time to time there may
be a technical breach of these exclusions which does not resuit from an overt investment decision made by
the investment Manager. In such a case, the investment Manager will be required to act to rectify the position
at the earliest opportunity and to report such action to the charity.

The Investment Manager provides custody of assets. the charlty has a nominated list of authorised Trustees,
at least two of whom are required to sign instructions to the Investment Manager.

The Investment Manager will submit a report to the Trustees each quanter outlining performance asset
allocation, risk profile and position of the portfolio against the Investment Objective.

The Trustees have responsibility for agreeing strategy and monitoring the performance of the invesiment
assets. The Trustees will meat every six months to review the portfolio, including an analysis of retum, risk
and asset allocation. Performance will be monitored against agreed market benchmark, against the
Investment Objactive of inflation plus 4% over the long term, and a peer group index.

Risk assessment o
The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the charity is exposed, and are satisfied that systems
are in place to mitigate exposure to the major risks.
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EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' REPORT AND STRATEGIC REPORT)
(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Structure, governance and management

The charity is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated on 31 July 2003 and is therefore governed by a

Memorandum and Articles of Association which have been subject to revision and wers formally adopted in
May 2018.

The Trustees, who are also the directors for the purpose of company law, and who served during the year and
up to the date of signature of the financial statements were:

Sir JF Jones

Mr A S McTavish

Professor C G Mills

Mr Paul Bibby

Mr Martin Carey

Mrs Susan Russell

Trustees are drawn from Everton Football Club and from the wider community. Most trustees are already
familiar with the practical work of the Charity when appointed, but new trustees are invited and encouraged to
attend short training sessions to familiarise themselves with the charity and the context within which it
operates. The Chief Executive Officer ensures that the Board of Trustees is kept up to date with any changes
in legislation, rules and regulations which may affect the charity.

None of the Trustees has any beneficial interest in the company. All of the Trustees are members of the
company and guarantee to contribute £10 in the event of a winding up.

The day to day management of the charity is delagated to the Senior Management Team which comprise:

Richard Kenyon - Chief Executive Officer

Sue Gregory - Director of Youth Engagement, Employability and Sports Development
Mike Salla - Director of Health and Sport

Linda McMullen - Director of Finance Resources and Operatuons

Lesley Beattie - Director of Development

The Board of Trustees meet on a regular basis and are provided with monthly status reports to enable them to
monitor the performance of the charity.

The Trustees induction procedure includes training in relation to governance, the role of a Trustee and their
responsibilities and any other matters that support their role.

The. remuneration of Everton in the Community employees is set by the Board of Trustees, having taken
advice from Everton FC HR department and benchmarked against similar roles in the charity sector.

All Trustees give of their time freely and no Trustee remuneration or expenses were paid in the year.
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EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' REPORT AND STRATEGIC REPORT)
(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Auditor

in accordance with the company's articles, a resolution proposing that McLintocks (NW) Limited be
reappointed as auditor of the company will be put at a General Meeting,

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the Trustees has confirmed that there is no information of which they are aware which is relevant to
the audlt, but of which the auditor is unawars. They have further confirmed that they have taken appropriate
steps to identify such relevant information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

The Trustees’ report, including the strategic report, was approved by the Board of Trustees.

Docugigmqby:
RS o N
['aag:o;sﬁébs;ém:' -
SirJ F Jones

Truste318 January 2022 | 3:41:26 PM PST
Dated: ........cooveriviicniens :
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EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 '

The Trustees, who are also the directors of Everton In The Community for the purpose of company law, are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements In accordance with applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company Law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including
the income and expenditure, of the charitable company for that year.

In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;

- make judgements and estimatss that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departuras
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charity will continue in operation.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the charity and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE TRUSTEES OF EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Everton In The Community (the ‘charity’) for the year ended 30 June
2021 which comprisa the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and the
notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS

102 "The Financlal Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Repubtic of lreland” (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

in our opinion, the financlal statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 30 June 2021 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, for the year then ended;

- ha\ée been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice:
an

- have been preparad In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the chatity in accordance with the athical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to golng concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustess' use of the going concem basis of
accounting in the preparation of the flnancial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charity’s ability to continue as a
going cancern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any fom_1 of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, In doing 8o, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge pbtgmed in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material mcoqsnsta.nmes or apparent maten_al
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinlons on other matters prescribed by the iompanlos fI\ct zoods‘t
ini d on the work undertaken in the course of our audit. .

l-n ourtazi?r:cf’gr‘nr::tsizn given in the Trustees' report, which includes the diractorsj report and tl?e strategic report
prepared for the purposes of company law, for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared Is consistent with the financisl statements, and N ' .

- the strategic report and the directors’ report included within the Trusteas' report have been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE TRUSTEES OF EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

Viatters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charity and its environment obtained in the course of the

audit, we have not identifled material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors' report included within
the Trustees' r_eport.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
fram branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns; or

- certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of Trustees' responsibiiities, the Trustees, who are also the directors of
the charity for the purpose of company law, are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
belng satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatament, whether
due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the
charity's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concam basis of accounting unless the Trustees eithsr intend to liquidate the charitable company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibliities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influsnce the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

!rre.gulaﬁt_ies,'including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outiined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of iregularities,

including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting imegularities, including fraud, is
detailed below.
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EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE TRUSTEES OF EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting Irregularity, including fraud

Qur approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of Irregularities, including
fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows: '

+ the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate
comrl)etence, capabilities and skills to Identify or racognise non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations;

+ we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the charity through discussions with trustees and
other management, and from our knowledge and experiancae of charity sector;

» we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on
the financial statements or the operations of the charity, including the Companies Act 2006, Charities Act
2011, data protectlon, anti-bribery, employment, food hygiene and health and safety legisiation;

= we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and reguiations identified above through making
enquiries of management team and inspecting legal correspondence; and identified laws and regulations
were communlcated within the audit team regularly and the team remained alert to Instancas of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibliity of the charity's financlal statements to material misstatement, including obtaining
an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

< making enquiries of management team as to where they considered there was susceplibility to fraud,
their knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

+» consldering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

- performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships,

« tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

« assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates were
indicatlve of potential bias; and

« investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures
which included, but were not limited to:

« agreeing financlal statement disclosures to underlying supporting dcgumentation;
. enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and
« reviewing correspondence with HMRC and relevant regulators.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Ragortlng Council's website at: htips:/
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditaor's report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE TRUSTEES OF EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than

the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we h ed,

Michael Caputo FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor) j

for and on behalf of McLintocks (NW) Limited 18 Jon v 2023

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor 2 Hilliards Court

. Chester Business Park

Chester
Chaeshire
CH4 9PX
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EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restrictad Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Notes £ £ £ £ £ £
Income from; ‘
Donations and legacies 3 897,887 857666 1,756,563 1,144,096 1,323,316 2,468,312
Charit jvities
Employ 4 109,285 362,746 472,031 130,996 253,745 384,741
Healith 4 21,089 616,000 637,069 50,651 338,274 388,925
Sport 4 87,512 441 534 529,048 135,973 483,442 619,415
Youth . 4, 322838 1,142711 1465549 . 626493 993,275 1,619,768
Other trading activities 8 405,304 - 405,304 357,404 - 357,404
investments 6 10,808 - 10,808 2,458 - 2,458
Total income 1,854,703 3,420,657 5,275,360 2,448,971 3,392,052 5,841,023
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 340,401 - 340,401 521,701 - 521,701
Charitable activities 8 1,584,200 2,482,804 4,067,184 1,610,563 2,500,628 4,111,192

Total resources expended 1,924,601 2482894 4407585 2,132,264 2,500,629 4,832,893

Net gains/(losses) on :
investments 12 95,959 - 95,959 (876) - (676)

Net incoming resources

before transfers 25,971 937,763 963,734 316,031 891,423 1,207,454
Gross transfers

between funds 29,398 (29,398) - 29,398 (29,398) -
Net movement in funds 55360 - 908,365 963,734 345,429 862,025 1,207,454

Fund balances at 1 July 2020 2,854,423 3,048685 5,903,108 2,508,994 2,186,660 4,695654

Fund balances at 30 June
2821 * 2,909,792 3,957,050 6,866,842 2,854,423 3,048,685 5,903,108

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

All income and expenditure derive from continuing activities.

The statement of financial activities also complies with the requirements for an income and expenditure account
under the Companles Act 2006.
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EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021
2021 2020
Notes £ £ £ £

Fixed agsets .
Tangible assets 13 2,680,085 2,720,236
Investments 14 1,102,017 499,334

3,792,102 3,219,570
Current assets
Stocks 16 1,503 2,970
Debtors 17 514,569 1,170,881
Cash at bank and in hand 3,200,009 2,068,427

3,718,071 3,242,278

Creditors: amounts fajling due within
one year 18 (841,331) (558,740)
Net current assets 3,074,740 2,683,538
Total assets less current liabilities 6,866,842 5,903,108
Income funds
Restricted funds 21 3,857,050 3,048,685
Unrestricted funds
Designated funds 22 1,803,481 1,749,851
General unrestricted funds 1,306,301 1,104,572

2,909,792 2,854 423

6,866,842 5,903,108

18 January 2022 T 3:41:26 PM PST

The financial statements were approved by the Trustees on

:Docuugnod by:
A' Vs N B
BBO4C23TAROBLAG. "

Sir J F Jones
Trustee

Company Registration No. 04851552
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EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Notes

Cash flows from operating actlvities
Cash generated from operations 25

Investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of investments

Proceeds on disposal of investments
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) In cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equlvalents at end of year

2021
£ £
1,604,685
(67,187) -
(800,245)
203,521
10,808
(563,103)
1,431,582
2,068,427

3,200,009

2020
£ £
547,534
(54,990)
(315,061)
(184,949)
2,458
(552,542)
(5,008)
2,073,435

2,068,427
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EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1

1.1

1.2

13

14

Accounting policies

Charity information

Everton In The Community is a private company limited by guarantee incorporated in England and Wales.
The registered office Is Goodison Park, Goodison Road, Liverpool, Merseyside, L4 4EL.

In the event of a winding up, the liability in respect of the guarantee is limited to £10 per member.

Accounting convention

The financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and “Accounting
and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their
accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(FRS 102)" (as amended for accounting periods commengcing from 1 January 2016). The charity is a Public
Benefit Entity as defined by FRS 102.

The financial statements are preparéd in sterling, which is the functional currency of the charity. Monetary
amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The principal
accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Going concem

The Charity's financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes an ability
to continue operating for the foreseeable future. The Covid- 19 pandemic was unexpected and it is
recognised that it will have an impact on some of the future income and expenditure streams of the Charity.
This led to a reassessment of the Charity's budgets, business plan and cash flows. No significant

concerns have been noted and the Charity considers it appropriate to continue to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Charitable funds

Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of their charitable
objectives. :

Designated funds comprise funds which have been set aside at the discretion of the Trustees for specific

purposes. The purposes and uses of the designated funds are set out in the notes to the financial
statements.

Restricted funds are subject to specific conditions by donors as to how they may be used. The purposes
and uses of tha restricted funds are set out in the notes to the financial statements.

Incoming resources

Income is recognised when the charity Is legally entitled to it aRer any performance conditions have been
met, the amounts can be measured reliably, and it is probable that income will be received.

Ca§h donations are rgoognised on receipt. Other donations are recognised once the charity has been
notified of the donation, unless performance conditions require deferral of the amount. income tax

recoverable in relation to donations received under Gift Aid or deeds of covenant is recognised at the time
of the donation.

Lpggcie;. are recognised on receipt or otherwise if the
distribution, the amount is known, and recei
as a contingent asset,

‘ charity has been notified of an impending
pt is expected. If the amount is not known, the legacy is treated
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EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

16

Accounting policies (Continued)

Donated facliities and donated professional services are recognised in income at thelr falr value when their
economic benefit can be rellably measured and the charity has control over the item. Fair value is

determined on the basis of the value of the gift to the charity, A corresponding amount is recognised in
expenditure.

Income from capital grants is racognised when the charity has entitlement to the funds, any performance
conditions have been met and the amount can be reliably measured.

Income from charitable activities includes income received under contract or where entitlement to the grant
funding is subject to performance conditions. Income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

\évhfen tl;e related services have been provided, income in advance of those services being provided is
eterred.

income from trading activities, includes income from fundraising evants and trading activities to raise funds
for the charity. Income is recognised when eamed and the charity Is entitled to the recaipt.

Resources expended

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a

third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a
single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one actlvity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on |
a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent,
and depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing
the charity to that expenditure, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required In
settiement and the amount of the obligation can be measured rellably. Expenditure is accounted for on an
accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all cost related to the category.
Where costs cannot be diractly attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a
basis consistent with the use of resourcss.

Irrecoverable VAT is charged as a cost against the activity for which the expenditure was incurred.

Support costs are those that that assist the work of the charity but are not directly attributable to the

. charitable activities. Support costs include office costs, administrative payroll costs and governance costs

which support the charity’s activities. Where the support costs cannot pe attributable to a direct activity they
have been allocated to the costs of raising funds and charitable activities on a pro-rata basis.

Governance costs represent costs associated with meeting the congtitutional and statutory req_uirements of
the charity and include the audit fees and costs linked to the strategic management of the charity.
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EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Accounting policies : (Continued)

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over
their useful lives on the following bases:

Freehold land and buildings 2% on cost
Leasehold land and buildings 2% on cost
Fixtures and fittings 25% on cost
Motor vehicles 33.33% on cost

.The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale

proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and Is recognised in the statement of financial activitles.

Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments are initially measured at transaction price excluding transaction costs, an.d are
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Changes in fair value are recognised in net
income/(expenditure) for the year. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

- Impairment of fixed assets

At each reporting end dats, the charity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication

exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is astimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost
comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the stocks to their present location and condition. items held for distribution at no or
nominal consideration are measured the lower of replacement cost and cost.

Net realisable valus is the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of complstion and costs to be

. incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

1.10

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid

investments with ariginal maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current iabilities.

Financial instruments

The charity hgs elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12
‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the charity's balance sheet when the charity becomas party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, when

there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts a i i i
) . nd there is an intention to se
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. feona
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112

113

Accounting policies (Continued)

Basic financlal assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at
transaction price Including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction
is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest, Financial
assets classified as receivable within one year are not amortised.

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors and bank loans are initially recognised at transaction price
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the

present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Financlal liabilities classified
as payable within one year are not amortiged.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of operations from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially”
at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial labilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the charity's contractual obligations expire or are discharged or
cancelled.

Employee benefits

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee's services
are received.

Termination bensfits are recognised immediately as an expense when the charity is demonstrably -
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

in the application of the charity's accounting policies, the Trustees are ‘required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on hlstorgcal experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. .

i i i i i is. isi to accounting’
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised _where the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future pericds where the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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3 Donations and legacies

Donations and gifts
Capital grants receivable
‘Donated goods and services from Everton FC

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Grants recelvable
Department for Digital, Culture, Media & Sport

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020

£ £ £ £

412,454 482,666 895120 1,951,383

- 375,000 375,000 -

485,433 - 485,433 516,929
897,887 857,666 1,755553 2,468,312
1,144,986 1,323,316 2,468,312

- 375,000 375,000 -

- 375,000 -

375,000
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4

Charitable activities

Grants

National Citizen Service
Soccer Camps

Other incoms

Analysis by fund
Unrestricted funds
Restricted funds

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Unrestricted funds
Restricted funds

Performance related grants

The Premier League
UEFA Foundation
NHS

Shelter

Steve Morgan
Foundation

Sport Tech

Police & Crime
Commissioners

Edge Hill University
ECOS & EFDN

The Big Lottery
Veterans Foundation
BBC Children in Need
Champs Public Health
Armed Forces Covenant
The Charity Trust
ESFA

Other

Employ Heaith Spont Youth Total Total

2021 2020

£ £ £ £ £ £

458,086 634,500 441,534 1,142,711 2,676,831 2,204,391

- - - 275,290 275,290 624,511

- - - - - 77576

13,845 2,569 87,512 47,548 151,574 108,371

472,031 637,069 529,046 1,465,549 3,103,695 3,012,849
109,285 21,089 87,612 322,838 540,704
362,748 816,000 441534 1,142,711 2,562,991
© 472,031 637,069 528,046 1,465,549 3,103,695

130,896 50,651 135,973 626,493 944,113

253,745 - 338,274 483,442 983,275 2,088,736

384,741 388,925 619,415 1,619,768 3,012,849

70,050 118,500 239,558 476,189 904,297 1,008,925

- 8,800 - - 8,900 26,058

- 12,465 - - .12,465 -

- - - - - 16,364

266,019 290,682 112,111 548,624 1,217,436 154,270

- - 32,500 - 32,500 24,375

26,677 - 26,677 86,648 140,002 740,581

- 66,364 ’ - - 66,364 -

- 21,552 - - 21,552 16,180

- 43,827 - - 43,827 -

- 5,835 - - 5,835 19,968

- - 30,688 - 30,688 29,379

- 18,965 - - 18,965 21,334

- 26,250 - - 26,250 -

- - - 31,250 31,250 .-

95,340 - - - 95,340 122,052

"L 21160 - - 21,160 24,905
458,086 634,500 441,534 1,142,711 2,676,831

2,204,391
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4 Charitable activities

5 Qther trading activities

Match day income

, Fundraising events
Cafe and Blue Base income
Sponsorships income

Other trading activities

6 Investments

Income from listed investments
Interest receivable

(Continued)

Unrestricted Unrestricted
funds funds

2021 2020

£ £

4,964 31,429
138,858 47,275
2,850 102,651
258,632 176,049
405,304 357,404
Unrestricted Unrestricted
funds funds

2021 2020

£ £

10,808 95

- 2,363

10,808 2,458
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7 Raising funds

Unrestricted - Unrastricted

funds funds
2021 2020
£ £

Fundraiging and publicity
Staging fundraising events 22,513 68,966
Other fundraising costs 7,483 11,8972
Staff costs 211,132 254,044
Fundraising and publicity 241128 335982

Trading costs

Cafe and Blue Base costs 4,454 48,865
Staff costs 70,664 88,215
Support costs 20,071 50,555
Trading costs 95,182 185,635
nvest nagemen 4,084 84
340,401 521,701
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8

Charitable activities

Staff costs
Programme costs
Motor and travet
Kit and equipment
Marketing
Premises costs
Training

Sundry costs

Share of support costs
(see note 9)

Share of governance costs
(see note 9)

Analysis by fund
Unrestricted funds
Restricted funds

Employ Health Sport Youth Total Total
2021 2020

2021 2021 2021 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
311,660 404,661 314,374 1,215,806 2,246,501 2,300,531
28,204 322,442 6,563 187,911 545,120 398,528
912 2,753 3,233 3,167 10,065 40,370
- 1,314 2,442 3,355 7,111 7,392
106 - 100 764 970 23,197
- - - 16,692 15,692 14,136
420 2,354 490 1,880 5,254 18,213
1,329 1,103 259 3435 6,126 41,510
342,631 734,627 327,461 1,432,120 2,836,839 2,843,877
100,506 325,202 175,576 428482 1,029,766 1,121,619
19,576 63,341 . 34,198 83,464 200,579 145,696
462,713 1,123,170 537,235 1,944,066 4,067,184 4,111,192
163,325 375,941 243,394 801630 1,584,290 1,610,563
299,388 747,229 293,841 1,142436 2,482,894 2,500,629
462,713 1,123,170 537,235 4,087,184 4,111,192

1,844,086

-36-.



DocusSign Envelope ID: EC4FFF4D-D644-4BEC-A43C-0A791743DOF5

EVERTON IN THE COMMUNITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

8 Charitable activities

(Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Employ Health Sport Youth Total
2020
£ £ £ £ £
Staff costs 331,999 325,019 485,891 1,157,622 2,300,531
Programme costs 15,646 114,350 29,047 239,485 398,528
Motor and travel : 3,619 9,829 12,557 14,365 - 40,370
Kit and equipment 25 2,316 1,456 3.595 7,392
Marketing 1,718 11,084 942 9452 23,197
Premises costs - - - 14,136 14,136
Training 2,405 1,113 1,105 13,590 18,213
Sundry costs 10,197 1,418 8,335 21559 41,510
365,610 465,130 539,333 1,473,804 2,843,877
Share of support costs (see note 9) 109,470 354,207 191,236 466,706 1,121,619
Share of governance costs (see note 9) 14,220 46,011 74,995 10470 145,696
489,300 865,348 805,564 1,950,980 4,111,192
Analysis by fund
Unrestricted funds 208,387 329,885 - 280,865 791,426 1,610,563
Restricted funds 280,913 535,463 524699 1,159,554 2,500,629
489,300 865,348 805,564

1,950,980 4,111,192
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S Support costs

Support Governance 2021 Support Governance © 2020
costs costs costs costs

£ £ £ £ £ £

Staff costs ' 310,606 - 310,606 266,192 - 266,192
Depreciation 97,338 - 97,338 110,873 - 110,673
Administration costs 521,393 - 521,383 621,676 - 621,676
Facilities management 100,429 - 100,429 173,633 - 173,633
Audit fees ‘ - 6,500 6,500 - 6,500 6,500
Accountancy - 25,450 25,450 - 22,335 22,335
Legal and professional - 168,620 168,629 - 116,861 116,861

1,020,766 200,579 1,230,345 1,172,174 145,696 1,317,870

Analysed between

Trading 20,071 - 20,071 50,555 - 50,555
Charitable activities 1,009,895 200,579 1,210,274 1,121,619 145,695 1,267,315

1,029,766 200,579 1,230,345 1,i72.174 145,695 1,317,870

10 Trustees

None of the Trustees (or any persons connected with them) raceived any remuneration or benefits from the
charity during the year,

11  Employees

The average monthly number of employees during the year was:

2021 2020

Number Number

Charitable activities 91 119
Fundraising and administration 17 29
Total 108 148
Employment costs 2021 2020
£ £

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

2,531,548 2,609,869
211,733 211,438
95,622 87,675

2,838,903 2,908,982
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1

12

Employees o (Continued)

The number of employees whose annual remuneration was more than
£80,000 Is as foliows:

2021 2020
Number Number
£60,000 - £70,000 1 1

The key management personnel of the charity comprise the Director of Health and Sport, the Director of
Youth Engagement, Employability and Sports Development, the Director of Finance Resources and
Operations and the Director of Development.

The total amount of employee benefits received by key management personnel amounted to £254,231
(2020 £224,088).

Net gains/(losses) on investments

Unrestricted Unrestricted

funds funds

2021 2020

£ £

Revaluation of investments 83,015 (676)
Gain/(loss) on sale of investments 12,844 -
95,959 (676)
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13 Tangible fixed assets

14

15

Cost
At 1 July 2020
Additions

At 30 June 2021

Depreciation and impairment
At 1 July 2020

Depreciation charged in the year

At 30 June 2021

Carrying amount
At 30 June 2021

At 30 June 2020

Fixed asset investments

Cost or valuation
At 1 July 2020
Additions
Valuation changes
Disposals

At 30 June 2021

Carrying amount
At 30 June 2021

At 30 June 2020

The historical cost of the investments held at 30 June 2021 was £943,449 (2020 £315,061).

Financial instruments

Carrying amount of financial assets .

Freehold land Leasehold Flxtures and Mator vehicles Total
and buildings land and fittinge
buiidings

£ £ £ £ £
1,102,708 1,720,192 252,948 100,695 3,176,543

67,187 - - - 67,187
1,169,895 1,720,192 252,048 100,695 3,243,730

59,840 118,505 179,270 100,692 456,307

22,040 33,768 41,530 - 97,338

81,880 160,273 220,800 100,692 553,645
1,088,015 1,569,919 32,148 3 2,690,085
1,042,868 1,803,687 73,678 3 2,720,236
Listed Cashin Total

investments portfolio

£ £

314,385 184,949 499,334

800,245 - 800,245

83,015 - 83,015
(170,834) (109,743) (280,577)

1,026,811 75,206 1,102,017

1,026,811 75,206 1,102,017

314,385 184,849 499,334

2021 2020

£ £

1,026,811

Instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

314,385
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18 Stocks

17

18

19

Goods for resaie

Debtars

Amounts falling due within one year:

Trade debtors
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Other taxation and social security
Deferred income

Trade creditors

Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income

Arising from Performance related grants

Notes

19

Deferred income is included in the financial statements as follows:

Deferréd income at 1 July 2020
Additions during the period
Amounts released to income

Deferred income at 30 June 2021

2021 2020
£ £
1,503 2,970
2021 2020
£ £
112,057 88,259
358,373 1,064,685
44,129 17,937
514,559 1,170,881
2021 2020
£ £
58,750 69,633
440 124 362,011
41,844 79,138
20,932 23,328
79,681 24,630
841,331 558,740
2021 2020
£ £
440,124 362,011
2021 2020
£ £
362,011 233,034
2,776,704 2,333,368
(2,698,591)  (2,204,391)
440,124 362,011
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20 Retirement beﬁeﬂt schemes
Defined contribution schemes
The charity operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all qualifying smployees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the charity In an independently administered fund.

The charge to profit or loss in respect of defined contribution schemes was £85,622 (2020 - £87,675).
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21

Restricted funds

The incoms funds of the charity include restricted funds comprising the following unexpended balances of
donations and grants held on trust for specific purposes:

Community Praperties
Active Blues

41 Goodison

Blue Famity

Diabetes

Disability

E-Steam

Everton Veterans Hub
Girls on side

Health improvement
Home is Where the Heart ts
Imagine Your Goals
Impact

Inspire

Kicks

Neighbourhood

New Dads

Primary Stars

Stand Together

Steve Morgan Foundation
Programmes

Tackling the Blues
Youth support

Movement in funds

Balance at Incoming Resources Transfers Balance at
1 July 2020 rosources expended 30 June 2021
£ £ £ £ £
1,967,724 605,453 - (29,398) 2,543,779
3,829 - (3,829) - -
65,899 150,411 (129,559) - 86,751
717,521 58,482 {224,327) - 551,676

- 12,465 (1,246) - 11,219

50,170 186,846 (118,086) - 117,930

- 121,000 (12,100) - 108,900

10,023 79,338 (52,481) - 36,878
5,112 1,000 55 - 6,167

- 44,229 (44,229) - -

150,155 - (150,155) - -
32,032 23,340 (23,861) - 31,511

- 160,505 (160,505) - -

- 362,746 (299,387) - 63,369

- 408,047 (269,092) - 138,955

- 24,363 (10,387 - 13,966

9,375 (937) 8,438

- 278,788 (174,755) - 104,033

- 52,801 (34,438) - 18,163

- 716,670 (693,627) - 23,043

48,220 100,000 (563,938) - 92,282

- 25,000 (25,000) -
3,048,685 3,420,657 (2,482,894) (29,398) 3,957,050
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21

Restricted funds

Comparative information in respsct of the preceding period is as follow:

Community Properties
Active Blues

41 Goodison

Blue Family

Disability

Everton Vets

Girls on side

Hang up Boots

. Healthy Blues
‘Health improvement

Healthy Blues

Home is Whera the Heart Is
Imagine Your Goals

Impact

Inspire

Kicks

Neighbourhood

Primary Stars

Stand Together

Tackling the Blues

(Continued)

Movement in funds
Balance at Incoming Resources Transafors Balance at
1 July 2019 resources expended 30 June 2020
£ £ £ £ £
1,716,928 280,194 - (29,368) 1,967,724
- 5,337 (1,508) - 3,829
- 16,664 (16,664) - 65,899
- 884,041 (166,520) - 717,521
23,029 164,035 (136,894) - 50,170
4,047 45,329 (39,353) - 10,023
4,862 1,675 (1,425) - 5,112
6,759 52,580 (38,339) - -
3.870 3,349 (7,219) - -
- 45123 (45,123) - -
3.870 3,349 (7,219) -
278,080 59,154 (187,079) - 150,155
- 38,878 (6,845) - 32,032
- 334187  (334,187) - -
28,131 253,836  (281,867) - -
- 433460 (433,460 - -
- 41,864 (41,864) - -
- 339407  (339,407) - -
- 78,420 (78,420) - -
21,625 76,891 {562,188) - 48,220
2,186,660 3,392,052 (2,500,629) 29,398 3,048,685
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21

Restricted funds (Continued)

Community Properties '

This funq represents community properties which have been grant funded. The fund will be reduced each
year in line with the related depreclation charge.

Active Blues

Funded through general fundraising and Everton Football Club partners, this project provides football and
walking football weekly provision for inactive men aged 35+ who are primarily from North Liverpool.

Blue Family

In Mgrch 2020, Everton Football Ciub and Everton in the Community launched 'Blue Family', a
coordinated outreach and engagement campaign to maintain contact with fans and provide vital support

and assistance to some of the most vulnerable, soclally isolated and at-risk members of the community In
the wake of the coronavirus pandemic.

41 Goodison

Funded by BT and the Premier League, this programme supports young people who are at risk of being
looked after and also those who are at risk of offending or have offended.

Diabetes
Funded by the NHS, this project — in partnership with Edge Hill University ~ invoives screening high-risk
groups of people for Type 2 Diabetes followed by offering a health intervention to improve glucose levels

and overall wellbsing. This project helps to prevent undiagnosed people developing serious health
implications caused by Type 2 Diabetes.

Disability

Funded through the Premier League and Children in Need, this programme includes projects that support
children, young people and adults with various disabilities including learning, sensory and physical.
Provision includes weekly sessions in schools and community settings alongside football teams that train
weekly and compete in various regional, national and intemational tournaments.

E-Steam

Funded by a.range of sources this programme improves digital and maths skills along with problem
solving, critical thinking, resilience, and team working. Comblning robots and football challenges, the
programme alms to enhance the interest of disadvantaged groups of young people in STEAM (Science,
Technology, Engineering, Arts and Maths) careers with the aim to bridge the widening STEM skills gap
across the Liverpoal City Region.

Everton Veterans Hub _ . -
Funded by the Big Lottery Fund, this project — in partnership with Edge Hill University - supports military
veterans who have retumed to civilian life and might be at risk of developing poor physical health and
poor mental health. The project supports with health improvement, education and employment.

Giris on Side _ _ .

Funded through general fundraising and Everton Football Club partners, this project provides weekly
support through sport and non-sport activities to females who have been diagnosed with various types of
mental illness who have been referred to us by Mersey Care.

Health Improvement N o .
Funded b;’ a range of sources including the NHS and local autharities, this prpject identifies emerging
health priorities and works alongside city-region stakeholders to develop campaigns and new projects to
address the emerging health needs.
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Restricted funds (Continued)

Home is Where the Heart Is

Funded by specific fundraising activities, this programme develops a supported living initiative for
homeless young people.

Imagine your Goals
Funded through general fundraising and Everton Football Club partners, this programme supports males
and females aged 18+ with various mental health conditions referred from Mersey Care. Weekly

'sessions take place across Merseyside including football and fitness sessions alongside providing

training, volunteering and employment opportunities for participants.

Impact
We secured an Impact Manager Funded by the Premier League to maximise any investment made in to
our programmes to deliver the highest social value posslble. This role has ‘been vital to understand the

key saclal need themes from our community to ensure we dsliver and sustain the right support in the right
areas.

Inspire

Funded by the Premier League, this programme aims to deliver targeted support to identified students
that need exira support to stay in education or to stop criminal explaltation.

Kicks

Funded through the Premier Leagus, this programme aims to reduce anti-social behaviour within the
community by engaging young people in a variety of sports.

Neighbourhood
Funded from specific fundraising and donations, this programme supports local residents and businesses

'in the Biue Mile surrounding Goodison Park

l New Dads

Funded by the NHS, this project — in partnership with PSS and LJMU - supports new dads with the
transition into fatherhood to help prevent poor physical health or poor mental health from developing. A
strang focus Is on improving health outcomes for the whole family.

Primary Stars

This is a national curriculum-linked education programme using the appeal of the Premier League and
Evaerton FC to inspire primary school children to leam, be active and develop important skills.

Steve Morgan Foundation Programmes

- EiTC and the Steve Morgan Foundation work together on a £4million early intervention programme
within" Speke-Garston to specifically tackle the barriers facing young people in attaining good education
and employment. The five year partnership aims to prevent serious violence, tackle gang culture and
protect young people from exploitation. In response to Covid -19 EiTC received a further boost of
£1.5million from Steve Morgan Foundation and the Governments Community Match Challenge initiative

tCo s%pport the charity’s essential work in supporting the City's most vulnerable people during and post
ovl

Tackling the Blues

Funded.by the Premier Leaque, this programme supports children and young people with, or at risk of
developing, mental illness. Itis a sports and education-based programme delivered in school settings.
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Restricted funds (Continued)

Youth Support
Funded by a range of sources this project identifies emerging youth priorities and works alongslde city-

region stakeholders to develop campaigns and new projects to address the emerging education and
heaith needs.

Sphere

Funded through Erasmus funding, this project is a European-wide project designed to share learning on
mental health projects.

Stand Together
Funded by the Premier Lsague, this project supports men and women aged 70+ who have been |dentified

as being socially isolated. Participants attend weekly sessions at the Blue Base alongside regular visits to
various Merseyside attractions and landmarks,

.47 -
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22

Unrestricted funds

_The income funds of the charity include the following designated funds which have been set aside out of
~ unrestricted funds by the trustees for specific purposes:

Movement in funds

Balance at Incoming Resources Transfers Revaluations, Balance at
1July 2020 resources oxpended galns and 30 June 2021
losses
£ £ £ £ £ £
Community Properties 1,242,622 - (26,410) - - 1,218,212
- National Citizen Service 137,641 275,648  (318,081) - - 95,206
Heatth and Wellbsing
Projects 104,231 2,570 (9.697) - - 97,104
Youth Engagement
Programmes 265,357 - (70,388) - - 194,969
Apprenticeship
Programme - 05,340 (95,340) - - -
General Unrestricted
Funds 1,104,572 1,481,147 (1,404,775) 29,388 95,959 1,306,301

2,854,423 1,854,703 (1,924,691) 29,398 95,958 2,909,792

Comparative information in respact of the preceding period is as follows:

Movement In funds

Balance at Incoming Resources Transfers Revaluations, Bafance at
1 July 2018 regources oxpended galns and 30 June 2020
losses
£ £ £ B £ £
Community Properties 1,256,112 - (26,410) 12,920 - 1,242,622
National Citizen Service - 624,511 (486,870) - - 137,641
Health and Wellbeing
Projects 123901 . 6234 (25,804) - - 104,231
Youth Engagement
Pragrammes 171,971 - - 93,386 - 265,357
Apprenticeship
Programme - 122,182 (122,192) - - -
General Unrsstricted
Funds 957,010 1,696,034 (1,470,888) (76,908) (676) 1,104,572
2,508,994 2,448,971 (2,132,264) 29,398 (676) 2,854,423
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o

23  Analysis of net assets between funds

24

25

26

Unrestricted Restricted

Fund balances at
30 June 2021 are
represented by:

Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets/
(liabilities)

Related party transactions

Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020

£ £ £ £ £ £
1,248,363 1,441,722 2,690,085 198,303 2,521,933 2,720,236
1,102,017 - 1,102,017 - 499,334 499,334
659,412 2515328 3,074,740 2,656,120 27418 2.683,538
2,909,792 3,957,050 6,866,842 3,048,685 . 5,903,108

2,854,423

Everton In the Community is the charitable arm of Everton Football Club. During the year Everton Football
Club donated £360,000 (2020 £581,806) towards the operational costs of the charity. in addition Everton

Football Club incurred operating costs amounting to £485,433 (2020 £516,929).' These costs are included
as donations and support costs.

Cash generated from operations

Surplus for the year

Adjustments for:

Investment income recognised in statement of financial activities
Gain on disposal of investments
Fair value gains and losses on Investments

Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets

Movements in working capital:

Decrease in stocks

Decrease/(increase) in debtors
Increase/(decreass) in creditors

increase in deferred income

Cash generated from operations

Analysis of changes In net funds

The charity had no debt during the year.

2021 2020
£ £
963,734 1,207,454
(10,808) (2,458)
(12,944) .
(83,015) 676
97,338 110,673
1,467 2,222
656,322 (847,703)
4,478 (52,308)
78,113 128,977
1,694,685 547,533
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